
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

Please note that, pursuant to the authority provided by Minn. Stat. Sec. 13D.021, subd. 1(1), the City has determined 
that in-person meetings of the City Council are not practical or prudent due to the COVID-19 public health pandemic 
and the declared national, state, and local emergencies.  Meetings of the Council will be conducted by electronic or 
telephonic means.  Under Minn. Stat. Sec. 13D.021, subd. 3, to the extent practical and possible, the City Council will 
allow individuals to monitor the meeting electronically.  Access to the meeting can be obtained online by following 
the link provided below or by contacting the City Hall for instructions and methods for obtaining access to the meeting. 

Meeting Access Information: https://www.ci.independence.mn.us/meetings 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA          
TUESDAY MARCH 16, 2021 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 6:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the March 2, 2021 Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1 Checks Numbered 20318-20322, Batch #2 
Check Numbered 20351-20378, Checks Numbered 20323-20350 were voided due to 
printer alignment error). 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 

7. West Hennepin Public Safety Director Gary Kroells: Presentation of the February 2021 
Activity Report. 

 
8. Hennepin County Assessor David Thomsen: Present Preliminary Local Board of Appeals 

and Equalization Information in Preparation for April 6, 2021 Meeting. 
 

9. TABLED FROM 3.2.2021 CC MEETING: Consideration of the State of Minnesota 
Department of Transportation and Hennepin County and City of Independence Cooperative 
Construction Agreement for the County Road 90 and TH 12 Roundabout Construction 
Project.  
 



 

a. The City Council is being asked to approve the cooperative agreement and 
authorize the Mayor and City Administrator to execute the agreement. 

 
10. 2021 Clean-up Day Discussion. 

 
11. Open/Misc. 

 
12. Adjourn. 



 

1 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. March 2, 2021 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, MARCH 2, 2021 –6:30 P.M. 

(Virtual Meeting/ All Attendees) 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER. 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 

order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m. 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

 

Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

2. ROLL CALL (Note: all noted present were “virtually” present 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Spencer, Betts, McCoy and Grotting 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, City Attorney Vose 

VISITORS: Paula Savage 

 

3. ****Consent Agenda**** 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 

motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the February 16, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1 Checks Numbered 20293-20295, Batch #2 Check 

Numbered 20296-20317). 

c. Approval of Pay Request #3 From Rochon for the City Hall Renovation Project. 

 

Motion by Betts, second by Spencer to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, McCoy, 

Grotting and Betts.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

4. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 

 

5. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 

 

Spencer attended the following meetings: 

• City Hall construction tour  

• Pioneer Sarah Creek Technical Advisory Meeting 

• Met with Commissioner Anderson regarding maintenance agreement 

• MnDOT Open House 

 

Grotting attended the following meetings: 

• Met with Commissioner Anderson about fiber optic plans for City 

• MnDOT Open House 



 

2 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. March 2, 2021 

 

 

McCoy attended the following meetings: (Virtual) 

• None 

 

Betts attended the following meetings: (Virtual) 

• MnDOT Open House 

• Sensible Land Use Coalition Meeting 

 

Johnson attended the following meetings: (Virtual) 

• Planning Commission Meeting 

• National League of Cities Steering Committee Meeting 

• Transportation Alliance Summit Meeting 

• Love Inc. Annual Meeting 

• Orono School Board Meeting 

• Sensible Land Use Coalition Meeting 

• Drug Task Force Annual Dinner 

• Small Cities Conference Call 

• MnDOT Open House 

 

Horner attended the following meetings: 

 

Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

• MnDOT Open House 

 

6. Introduction and Conversation with Hennepin County Commissioner Kevin Anderson. 
 
Anderson said he looks forward to diving in and has been made Chair of the Public Works Committees. He 

said he is looking forward to that role and also expanding the broadband opportunities. Johnson asked about 

Anderson’s background. Anderson said he was in IT for 20 years most recently as a System Architect. McCoy 

noted there are big issues in Independence with broadband. Anderson said he would like to work on solutions 

such as putting fiber in as road work is being done so they may be tapped into easily by utilities. He hopes to 

improve access to a lot of communities by building up the infrastructure. Grotting asked if he had contacted 

the state about running fiber along some of the current projects. Anderson said he is talking to people and 

trying to get this vision cultivated. Grotting said it would be great if broadband could be made a priority.  

 

7. Andrew Toumisto (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for the 

properties located at 4024 and 4084 Lake Sarah Drive South (PID No.s 02-118-24-43-0004 and 02-118-

24-43-0005) in Independence, MN: 
   

a. RESOLUTION 21-0302-01: Considering approval of a minor subdivision to permit a lot 

combination which would combine the two subject properties into one property 

 

Kaltsas said the subject property is located along the east side of Lake Sarah Drive South and just north of 

CSAH 11. The applicant constructed a home located on the 4084 Lake Sarah Drive South parcel and recently 

acquired the vacant 4024 Lake Sarah Drive South parcel. There is an existing home located on the 4084 

parcel and a detached accessory structure located on the 4024 parcel. The properties are heavily wooded 

with wetlands on the eastern side. The property has the following site characteristics: 



 

3 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. March 2, 2021 

 

Property Information: 4024 and 4084 Lake Sarah Drive South 

Zoning: Rural Residential 

Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential 

Acreage (Before): Lot 1 – 7.31acres 

Lot 2 – 5.21 acres 

Acreage (After): 12.51 acres  

 

In 2015 the previous owner of this parcel subdivided the original property into 5 (5) buildable lots known as 

HENDLEY ADDITION. There were three lots created on Lake Sarah Drive South and two lots created on 

CSAH 11. The applicant initially purchased 4084 Lake Sarah Drive South (north parcel) and constructed a 

home on the property. The applicant recently acquired 4024 Lake Sarah Drive South. Following acquisition 

of the property, he located a small, detached shed on the north side of the property not knowing that it was 

not permitted without a principal structure. The City notified the applicant that the shed was not permitted 

and discussed possible solutions which included combining the two properties into one property. The 

applicant would like to combine the properties back into one (1) lot for the purpose of using the entire 

property as one property. There are several aspects of this property that should be noted by the City during 

consideration of the application: 

 

1. The properties are heavily wooded and have a large wetland on the east side. 

2. The existing shed is considered an illegal structure and will have to be removed if the lot combination is not 

approved. If approved, the detached accessory shed would be permitted and would meet applicable setbacks. 

3. Based on the current zoning and combined lot size, this property could be subdivided again in the future. 

The minimum lot size in the RR-Rural Residential zoning district required in order for subdivision to be 

considered is 7.6 acres. The current standard would allow a maximum of two lots for properties less than 12.6 

acres (this property will be 12.51 acres combined). 

4. The existing home and accessory buildings will meet all requisite setbacks in the after condition. 

5. The applicant is proposing to dedicate the new and amended 10’ drainage and utility easements as shown 

on the proposed plan. The City will consider vacating a portion of the drainage and utility easement that is 

located along the east/west property line to be removed (see below). The applicant shall execute the necessary 

documents to clean up any easements as determined necessary by the City. The City will need to vacate the 

existing portion of the drainage and utility easement that runs along the existing east/west dividing line (see 

below). If the subdivision is approved by the City Council, the vacation public hearing and resolution will be 

considered at the next Council Meeting. 

 

The proposed The proposed subdivision to allow a lot combination appears to meet all applicable standards of 

the City’s zoning and subdivision ordinance. The combined lot will fit into the surrounding area and should 

have minimal impacts on the surrounding properties. The Planning Commission recommended approval of 

the requested minor subdivision with the following findings: 

 

1. The proposed minor subdivision to allow a lot combination request meets all applicable conditions 

and restrictions stated Chapter V, Sections 500 and 510, Planning and Land Use Regulations and Zoning, in 

the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

2. Approval of the minor subdivision is subject to the vacation of the existing drainage and utility easements 

that run parallel to the existing east west dividing line. 

3. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested minor subdivision. 

4. The Applicant shall execute and record the requisite perimeter drainage and utility easements with 

the county within six (6) months of approval. 

5. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county within six (6) 

months of approval. 



 

4 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. March 2, 2021 

 

Motion by McCoy, second by Spencer to approve RESOLUTION 21-0302-01: A minor subdivision to 

permit a lot combination which would combine the two subject properties into one property for the 

properties located at 4024 and 4084 Lake Sarah Drive South (PID No.s 02-118-24-43-0004 and 02-118-

24-43-0005) in Independence, MN. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, McCoy, Grotting and Betts.  Nays: None.  

Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

8. Consideration of the State of Minnesota Department of Transportation and Hennepin County and City of 

Independence Cooperative Construction Agreement for the County Road 90 and TH 12 Roundabout 

Construction Project.  

 

a. The City Council is being asked to approve the cooperative agreement and authorize the Mayor 

and City Administrator to execute the agreement. 

 

Kaltsas said the City has been discussing the TH 12/CSAH 90 2021 roundabout reconstruction project with 

MNDOT for several years. In December of 2020, MNDOT notified the City that they would be preparing a 

Cooperative Agreement that would pass down to the City MNDOT’s responsibility for the future maintenance 

of several key elements of the newly constructed intersection improvement. MNDOT’s internal policy 

relating to maintenance of key elements (described below) is to pass the responsibility down to the benefitting 

authority. For this project, the responsibility has been passed down to Hennepin County. Similar to MNDOT’s 

policy, Hennepin County also has a policy which shifts responsibility down to the local municipality for the 

same items. There are several significant short and long-term potential impacts to the City resulting from this 

request. The City is being asked to take over the responsibility for the following maintenance items: 

 

Maintenance by the City: 

Upon completion of the project, the City will provide the following without cost or expense to the State: 

 

1.1. Sidewalks. Maintenance of any sidewalk construction on the roundabout at T.H. 12 and C.S.A.H. 90, 

including stamped and colored concrete sidewalk (if any) and pedestrian ramps. Maintenance includes, 

but is not limited to, snow, ice, and debris removal, patching, crack repair, panel replacement, cross street 

pedestrian crosswalk markings, vegetation control of boulevards (if any) and any other maintenance 

activities necessary to perpetuate the sidewalks in a safe, useable, and aesthetically acceptable condition. 

 

1.2. Maintenance of lighting at and approaching the roundabout, including all legs and within the roundabout 

as shown in Exhibit “A”, will be shared between the State and the City. The City will be responsible for 

the hook up cost and application to secure an adequate power supply to the service pad or pole and will 

pay all monthly electrical service expenses necessary to operate the lighting facility. The City will be 

responsible for relamping or LED luminaire replacement, repair or replacement of all damaged luminaire 

glassware, loose connections, luminaires when damaged or when ballasts fail, photoelectric control on 

luminaires, defective starter boards or drivers, damaged fuse holders, and blown fuses for the entire 

system. For those poles on the local legs of the roundabout shown in Exhibit "A", the City will be 

responsible for knocked down poles including wiring within the poles, damaged poles, pullboxes, 

underground wire, and damaged foundations for all of the maintenance. The State will be responsible for 

the remainder of the lighting maintenance within the main roundabout and at the trunk highway legs of 

the roundabout.  

 

1.3. Additional Drainage. No party to this Agreement will drain any additional drainage volume into the storm 

sewer facilities constructed under the construction contract that was not included in the drainage for 

which the storm sewer facilities were designed, without first obtaining written permission to do so from 

the other party. The drainage areas served by the storm sewer facilities constructed under the construction 



 

5 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. March 2, 2021 

 

contract are shown in a drainage area map, Exhibit "Drainage Area", which is on file in the office of the 

State's District Hydraulics Unit at Roseville and is incorporated into this 

 

Agreement by reference. 

1.4. Related Agreements. This Agreement will supersede and terminate the operation and maintenance terms 

of Lighting Maintenance Agreement No. 1000750 dated August 18, 2015, between the State and City, for the 

existing lighting system on T.H. 12 at C.S.A.H. 90. In addition to the aforementioned items, the initial 

agreement also required the City to be financially responsible for the maintenance of the newly created 

stormwater ponds. The City discussed this point of the agreement further with MNDOT and they ultimately 

agreed to remove the pond maintenance responsibility from the agreement. The City has the following 

concerns/considerations that should be noted by Council: 

 

• Lighting- The City has previously agreed to maintain lights located within the MNDOT ROW. For those 

lights located along TH 12 at City street intersections, the City both owns and maintains the LED lights that 

were installed in 2017. The City pays for the cost of the electricity and all maintenance and replacement. It 

costs the City approximately $25 ($20 base fee, plus $5 electricity fee) per light per month. The City is 

anticipating that there would only be one service charge for the entire 16 light system in this location. The 

City would anticipate approximately a $1,200 annual cost for just powering the lights. The City would be 

responsible for the maintenance of the lights, wiring, controls, etc. for all 16 lights. The City is responsible for 

the cost of providing power and establishing the service to the lighting system. MNDOT was not able to 

provide an estimated cost for this requirement and did not investigate the cost with the electric contractor 

and or provider. It is estimated that this cost could range between $4,000- $10,000. The City would be 

responsible for the poles, replacement, and any damage for the 4 lights circled in red and included on Exhibit 

A (attached). The City had discussed this with MNDOT and requested that the Exhibit A be included in the 

agreement so that it was clearly defined. The City would need to contract with MNDOT or another source for 

the maintenance of the lights. The City has not realized a significant maintenance liability for the 6 LED lights 

installed in 2017. The City has had to replace one of the lights that was hit by a vehicle. The cost of the 

replacement was charged to the vehicle owners insurance policy. There will be some cost associated with the 

annual maintenance of these lights. The City would not own the lights and as a result cannot ensure the lights 

based on the current language in the agreement. The LMCIT has provided the following recommendation to 

the City should the City Council decide to enter into a Cooperative Agreement: 

 

If MNDOT owns them, then you need a contractual requirement in order to give you an insurable interest. I 

would recommend that you include a clause in your agreement where you are responsible for maintenance 

and repair/replacement that specifically identifies who is responsible for insuring them. If you want to insure 

them, you will need to specifically add them to your policy by giving an address description, and then 

describing what is covered, i.e. 25 streetlights, including lights poles and stands, valued at $15K each. 

 

This type of provision would need to be added to the agreement. 

• Sidewalks- The City is being asked to maintain the sidewalks and corresponding painted crosswalks as 

follows (shown in green below): § Maintenance includes, but is not limited to, snow, ice, and debris removal, 

patching, crack repair, panel replacement, cross street pedestrian crosswalk markings, vegetation control of 

boulevards (if any) and any other maintenance activities necessary to perpetuate the sidewalks in a safe, 

useable, and aesthetically acceptable condition. The sidewalks are 10’ in width and wrap around the outside 

of the roundabout. The City does not have equipment and or personnel to maintain the sidewalks and or 

crosswalks. The City would be required to repaint the crosswalks, repair individual sidewalk panels and plow 

snow within the MNDOT and HC ROW’s. MNDOT typically makes several additional passes on their roads 

following a snow event. The City would not be able to continually monitor MNDOTS plowing operations and 

be able to maintain the sidewalks in a passable and safe condition. 



 

6 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. March 2, 2021 

 

The City does not currently have the capacity either financially or physically to take on the repair and 

replacement of the concrete sidewalks or crosswalk striping. If the City does not continually maintain the 

sidewalks, they would be potentially liable for injuries incurred by users of the sidewalks. Staff asked if 

MNDOT would add indemnification language to the agreement and told that it was not an option. The City 

has concerns relating to PW working within the HC and MNDOT ROW’s. City staff does not have the 

number of workers required to safely flag and provide warning relating to the workers in the ROW.  

 

Staff is seeking further direction and consideration relating to the proposed cooperative agreement with 

MNDOT. The City has noted in our discussions that the improvements do not include any City roads or 

right of way. The City is being asked to take some responsibility for the defined items related to the 

reconstructed intersection of a state highway and county highway. This agreement also raises questions 

relating to the TH 12/CSAH 92 reconstruction project that is currently in the process of being designed. The 

City was informed that a similar agreement will be requested for improvements relating to that project. The 

costs associated with the cooperative agreement are not budgeted at this time and may be difficult to 

accommodate depending on the extent of the responsibilities. City Council is asked to consider whether or 

not to approve entering into a Cooperative Agreement with MNDOT. 

 

Johnson asked what the small cell technology would be used for and Kaltsas said they are used as a bolster for 

the 5G technology. Vose said it is appropriate to be looking at this technology and this type of agreement. He 

noted the maintenance obligation would mean taking on the liability if an accident occurred. Vose said 

maintaining the lights can be labor and capital intensive. Johnson asked who is responsible for noting when 

lights are out. Kaltsas said that is part of his concern with all of this that the maintenance would fall on the 

City which has limited resources.  

 

Johnson said it doesn’t seem compatible to have city equipment working on U.S. Highway. McCoy said he 

would be very opposed to taking over the maintenance of the sidewalks. Betts asked what the purpose of the 

sidewalk was and why was it needed. Vose said he has seen other round-abouts where there are not sidewalks 

and he said it would not be unreasonable for the City to say that it did not have the resources to maintain it. 

Spencer said he spoke with Commissioner Anderson and noted that the maintenance was going to be passed 

down to the City. He said the concerns are that there is no need to have pedestrian traffic across a round-

about. Spencer said he agrees with the others that a sidewalk is not needed, and it should not be a City 

responsibility. He said the lights need to be owned by the City if we are going to be made responsible for the 

upkeep on them. Spencer said there could be continuing discussions with Hennepin County. Kaltsas said he 

will pay the electric bill, but the City needs to be indemnified beyond that. 

 

9. Motion by Spencer, second by Betts to table the consideration of the State of Minnesota Department 

of Transportation and Hennepin County and City of Independence Cooperative Construction 

Agreement for the County Road 90 and TH 12 Roundabout Construction Project.  Ayes: Johnson, 

Spencer, McCoy, Grotting and Betts.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION 

DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

8. OPEN/MISC. 

 

9. ADJOURN. 

Motion by Betts, second by Grotting to adjourn at 7:38 p.m. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, McCoy, Betts, 

and Spencer.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

_____________________________ 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Trish Gronstal/ Recording Secretary 



 

7 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. March 2, 2021 

 

 

 





















Hennepin County Assessor’s Office 
300 South Sixth Street, Minneapolis, MN 55487 
612-348-3046 | hennepin.us

To: City of Independence, Mayor and Council 
From:  Dave Thomsen, Residential Appraiser 
Date: March 4, 2021 
Re: 2021 Assessment and Board of Appeal and Equalization 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

The 2021 Independence Board of Appeal Meeting is scheduled to be virtually held on 
Tuesday, April 6, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. In preparation for the upcoming Board of Appeal 
Meeting, please find the enclosed data to help you. There is market data, Board of 
Appeal meeting procedures, and sales photos with characteristics from sales throughout 
the city. 

Annual Revaluation, Sales, and New Construction Reviews 
Each year, one fifth of the properties in the city are reviewed and the records are 
updated. For the 2021 assessment we viewed one fifth of the city. The areas viewed 
were in the west central and central portions of the city. The viewing, reviewing, and 
statistical analysis of all sales that sold between October 1, 2019 and September 30, 
2020 in the City of Independence were made. 

Summary of the 2021 Assessment 
Each year the estimated market values are analyzed along with sales data from the 
market. A recalculation of land and building values were made to all property types. 
The results of the adjustments for the following property types are: 

Residential  + 3.7% Condo Garages No Change 
Residential Lakeshore  + 8.3% Double Bungalow + 0.9%
Commercial  + 1.0%  Agricultural   + 1.7%
Industrial  + 3.5%

The City of Independence has a total market value of approximately $831,437,300. This 
value includes $11,314,800 in new construction improvements. The overall value 
increase for all property types in the City of Independence is 4.06%. 



 
The Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Process 

Value notices are scheduled to be mailed the beginning of March. Taxpayers with value 
or classification concerns should contact the assessor’s office. During the initial 
conversation the property owner may discuss their concerns and review sales 
information with an appraiser. The majority of the callers are satisfied after a 
conversation with an appraiser. If additional attention is necessary, the appraiser will 
review the property. 
 
The board has the authority to increase, decrease, or take no action on individual 
valuations. The total reduction must not reduce the cities aggregate assessment by 
more than one percent or none of the adjustments will be allowed. The board cannot 
increase or decrease by a percentage to all of the assessments in the district by class. If 
the board chooses to reconvene, it must do so within 20 days (from the meeting call to 
order.)   
 
In order for the taxpayer to appeal to the County Board they must first appeal to the 
Local Board either in person or in writing. The County Board of Appeal and Equalization 
will begin meeting on June 14, 2021. All requests for appointments at the County Board 
must be received by May 21, 2021. To make an appointment, taxpayers should call 612-
348-7050. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please contact Dave Thomsen at 612-388-5426 



Property Tax Division - Mail Station 3340 St. Paul, MN 55146-3340 

Revised March 2018 

This fact sheet is intended to help you become more familiar with Minnesota tax 
laws and your rights and responsibilities under the laws. Nothing in this fact 
sheet supersedes, alters, or otherwise changes any provisions of the tax law, ad-
ministrative rules, court decisions, or other revenue notices. Alternative formats 
available upon request. 

Minnesota Revenue, How the Assessor Estimates Your Market Value  1 

How the Assessor Estimates Your Market Value

Property Tax Fact Sheet 2 

2 

Fact Sheet 

www.revenue.state.mn.us

How does the assessor estimate the 
market value of my property? 

Assessors value properties using a mass appraisal 
process to review sales of similar properties in the 
area over a set time period.  

This “estimated market value” represents what 
your property would sell for in an “arms-length” 
sale on the open market (where buyer and seller 
are not related and both are educated about the 
property). 

Assessors review sales from October 1 to Septem-
ber 30. They adjust the prices for market trends to 
estimate the market value of your property on the 
next assessment date (January 2).  

An example of this timeline is: 

• To estimate a property’s 2018 market value,
the assessor reviews property sales from
October 1, 2016, to September 30, 2017.

• Property owners may appeal their estimated
market value and classification. This process
occurs from April 1, 2018 to June 30, 2018.

• Property values and classifications become
final on July 1, 2018. These values are used
to determine taxes for 2019.

Assessors also review other data such as supply 
and demand, marketing times, and vacancy rates. 
This helps them determine if the real estate market 
in your area is increasing, stable, or decreasing. 

What is the difference between ‘Estimated 
Market Value’ and ‘Taxable Market Value’? 

While estimated market value (EMV) shows what 
your property would likely sell for on the open 
market, “taxable market value” (TMV) is used to 
determine your taxes. 

A property’s TMV is its estimated market value 
minus any tax exemptions, deferrals, and value ex-
clusions that apply. For example, many homeown-
ers have a Homestead Market Value Exclusion, 
which reduces the amount of home value that is 
subject to tax. 

How does my property value affect my 
property taxes? 

Property value does not directly affect your prop-
erty tax bill. It is used to calculate your share of the 
local property tax levy for the year. 

This levy is the total property tax revenue needed 
to fund the budgets set by your county, city or 
town, and school district.  

Your property’s taxable market value is multiplied 
by its classification rate to determine its share of 
the levy.  

Increasing or decreasing your property’s market 
value does not change the overall amount of prop-
erty tax revenue that is collected. 

For more information, see Fact Sheet 1, Under-
standing Property Taxes. 

Estimated market value is one of the factors used to determine your property taxes. This fact sheet ex-
plains how that value is calculated and used. 



 

 

 
  Minnesota Revenue, How the Assessor Estimates Your Market Value   2 

How do assessors verify their estimated 
values are in line with the market? 

The Department of Revenue and assessors do a 
“sales ratio study” each year to see how assessors’ 
values compare to actual sales prices. 

A sales ratio is the assessor’s EMV of a property 
divided by its actual sales price:  

Sales Ratio  = 
Assessor EMV

 Actual Sales Price 
 

For example, assume a home was valued at by the 
assessor at $200,000 and sold for $210,000. The 
sales ratio is calculated like this: 

Sales Ratio = 
 $200,000 
 $210,000 

 = 0.952 = 95% 
 

The overall EMVs should be within 90 to 105 per-
cent of actual sales prices. Otherwise the Depart-
ment of Revenue may order the assessor to adjust 
property values. 

Where do assessors get sales 
information? 

This information comes from sales of real estate. A 
Certificate of Real Estate Value (CRV) is filed 
whenever real estate sells for more than $1,000.  

CRVs have important details about each transac-
tion. Assessors use this information to help esti-
mate market values and for the sales ratio study. 

Before using a CRV in the sales ratio study, the as-
sessor must verify the sale was an open-market, 
arms-length sale. Otherwise it cannot be used in 
the study.  

How do I know if my assessor has the right 
information for my property? 

Assessors are required to inspect properties in per-
son at least once every 5 years. They also inspect 
property if new construction or demolition takes 
place.  

You may contact the assessor to verify information 
about your property such as dimensions, age, and 
condition of any structures.  

If your property has new improvements or other 
changes the assessor may not know about, you can 
ask the assessor to review and adjust your property 
records. 

If you disagree with the assessor’s value for your 
property, you may appeal. For more information, 
see Fact Sheet 3, How to Appeal Your Value and 
Classification. 

Can the values of some properties decrease 
while others increase? 

Yes. Sales prices for different types of property 
can vary widely depending on market conditions 
and other factors. 

In recent years, for example, sales of farmland 
were generally stronger than residential or com-
mercial sales in most areas of the state.  

No two properties are exactly alike. A property’s 
market value or sales price is also affected by its 
unique characteristics – such as location, square 
footage, number of rooms, etc. 

Do property values in all areas increase or 
decline at the same rate? 

No. Local real estate markets can be affected by a 
wide range of factors, such as new construction, 
changing demand for property, or economic trends.  

Each area or neighborhood is different; its values 
can change at a faster (or slower) rate than others.  

Where can I get more information? 

If you have questions or need more information: 
• Refer to: 

o Fact Sheet 1, Understanding Property 
Taxes; and 

o Fact Sheet 3, How to Appeal Your 
Value and Classification. 

• Go to www.revenue.state.mn.us and type 
property tax fact sheets into the Search 
box. 

• Contact your County Assessor. 

http://www.revenue.state.mn.us/


Property Tax Fact Sheet 3

Property Tax Division – Mail Station 3340 – St. Paul, MN 55146-3340 

3 

This fact sheet is intended to help you become more familiar with Minnesota 
tax laws and your rights and responsibilities under the laws. Nothing in this 
fact sheet supersedes, alters, or otherwise changes any provisions of the tax 
law, administrative rules, court decisions, or revenue notices. Alternative formats 
available upon request. 

Revised March 2018 

How to Appeal Your Value and Classification 

  Minnesota Revenue, How to Appeal Your Value and  Classification  1 

www.revenue.state.mn.us

Fact Sheet 

What if I disagree with how my property 
was assessed? 

Most issues and concerns can be resolved by 
doing research and contacting the county 
assessor’s office. You should: 

• Verify information about your property,
such as its dimensions, age, and condition
of its structures.

• Review records to determine the market
values of similar properties in your
neighborhood.

• Review sales data to see what similar
properties in your area are selling for.

• Ask the assessor to explain the criteria
used to classify your property. You may
review the classifications of other
properties used in the same way as yours.

If your property has not been inspected recently 
(both interior and exterior), ask the assessor to 
review your property.  

If you and the assessor are unable to agree on 
your property valuation or classification, you can 
make a formal appeal. 

How does my property’s classification 
affect my taxes? 

Assessors classify all property according to its use 
on January 2. Each class of property (home, 
apartment, cabin, and farm business) is taxed at a 
different percentage of its value. This percentage, 
or “class rate,” is determined by the Legislature.  

The class rate plays a significant role in how 
much property tax you pay. 

What can I appeal? 

You can appeal your property’s estimated market 
value, and/or classification if you feel your 
property is: 

• Classified improperly
• Valued higher or lower than you could

sell it for
• Valued differently from similar property

in your area

Your assessor is not responsible for the dollar 
amount of property taxes that you pay. Tax rates 
are determined by your local taxing authorities 
(city, county, school districts, etc.). You may not 
appeal your taxes. 

Each spring your county sends you a Notice of Valuation and Classification. Three factors that affect 
your tax bill are:  

1. The amount your local governments (town, city, county, etc.) spend to provide services
2. The estimated market value of your property
3. The classification of your property (how it is used)

The assessor determines the value and classification of your property; you may appeal if you disagree. 



  Minnesota Revenue, How to Appeal Your Value and Classification  2 

How do I appeal my assessment? 

You may appeal to your Local and/or County 
Board of Appeal and Equalization, or you may 
choose to go directly to Minnesota Tax Court. 

The date, times, and locations of the boards are 
on the Notice of Valuation and Classification. 
You should schedule your appearance with the 
board. 

You must appeal to the Local Board of Appeal 
and Equalization before appealing to the County 
Board of Appeal and Equalization. 

For both boards you may make your appeal in 
person, by letter, or have someone else appear 
for you. The assessor will be present to answer 
questions. 

Note: By law, the Local and County Board of 
Appeal and Equalization cannot make a change 
favoring a taxpayer if the assessor is not allowed 
to inspect the property.  

What should I bring to my appeal? 

Bring evidence and supporting documentation 
about your property’s value and classification 
such as: 

• A recent appraisal of your property
• Real estate listings for similar properties

in your area
• Photos of your property that may help

support your claim

What is the Local Board of Appeal and 
Equalization? 

The Local Board of Appeal and Equalization is 
usually the same people as your city council or 
town board. The board of appeal meets in April 
or May.  

Cities and towns may choose to transfer their 
board powers to the County Board of Appeal and 
Equalization.  

If your city or town board has done this, your 
Notice of Valuation and Classification will direct 
you to begin your appeal at the county level. 

What is the County Board of Appeal and 
Equalization? 

The County Board of Appeal and Equalization is 
usually the same people as your county board of 
commissioners or their appointees. This board 
meets in June.  
You may appeal to the county board if you are 
not satisfied with the decision of the Local Board 
of Appeal and Equalization, or if your city or 
town has transferred its powers to the county. 

If you are not satisfied with the decision of the 
County Board of Appeal and Equalization, you 
may appeal to the Minnesota Tax Court 

How do I appeal to Minnesota Tax Court?

To appeal your property’s value or classification, 
you complete and file Minnesota Tax Court 
Form 7, Real Property Tax Petition.  

You must file your appeal by April 30 of the 
year the tax becomes payable. For example, you 
must appeal your 2018 assessment by April 30, 
2019. 

You can get more information, forms, and in-
structions at: 

• mn.gov/tax-court or 
• Call 651-539-3260

Where can I get more information? 

If you have questions or need more information 
about the appeal process, contact your County 
Assessor’s Office. 

For more information on how market value and 
classification are determined: 

• Refer to:
o Fact Sheet 1, Understanding

Property Taxes and

o Fact Sheet 2, How the Assessor
Estimates Your Market Value. 

• Go to www.revenue.state.mn.us and type
property tax fact sheets into the Search
box.

https://mn.gov/tax-court
http://www.revenue.state.mn.us/


 
 

 

Property Tax Division – Mail Station 3340 – St. Paul, MN 55146-3340

 

This fact sheet is intended to help you become more familiar with Minnesota 
tax laws and your rights and responsibilities under the laws. Nothing in this 
fact sheet supersedes, alters, or otherwise changes any provisions of the tax 
law, administrative rules, court decisions, or revenue notices. Alternative formats 
available upon request. 

www.taxes.state.mn.us

Preparing an Appeal to Your Local and County 
Boards of Appeal and Equalization 

Property Tax Fact Sheet 10 Fact Sheet 

10 

Revised 07/04 Minnesota Revenue, Preparing an Appeal to your Local and County Boards of Appeal and Equalization 1

 

You have decided to appeal the valuation and/or 
classification of your property to your Local or County 
Boards of Appeal and Equalization. You must appeal to 
the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization before 
appealing to your County Board of Appeal and 
Equalization. 
 
If you haven’t done so already, you should contact your 
assessor’s office before making a formal appeal to discuss 
changing your assessment. Often issues  
and concerns can be resolved at this level. 
 
If you and the assessor were unable to agree  
on your valuation or classification you may  
decide to appeal to your Local and/or County Boards of 
Appeal and Equalization. 
 
The general information contained in this fact sheet is 
applicable to preparing for appeals to both the Local and 
County Boards of Appeal and Equalization. 
 
Successfully appealing your assessment  
Minnesota law assumes that the County Assessor has 
correctly valued and classified your property. You must 
present factual evidence to convince the Board otherwise 
in order to win your appeal. Make sure all facts are 
presented, and the board understands the  
information presented, so a decision can  
be made based on facts. 
 
Successfully appealing your value or  
classification at your Local or County Board of Appeal 
and Equalization can mean a number of things. 
 
It does not necessarily mean that the board ruled in your 
favor and lowered your value or changed your 
classification. 
 
Whether or not the local board decides to make a change 
in your estimated market value or classification, you can 
still be successful in appealing to your local board. The 
ultimate result you want to achieve is to make sure your 
value is warranted and the classification of your property 
is correct based on its use. 

Preparing for your appeal 
The first step is to do some research to collect information 
to show why you believe your estimated market value or 
classification is incorrect. Begin by  
contacting the assessor’s office. 

 Verify information about your property,  
such as its dimensions, age and  
condition of its structures. 

 Review records to determine the market value of 
similar property in your neighborhood. 

 Review sales data to find out what similar property in 
your area is selling for. 

 Check real estate ads in your newspaper to get an 
idea of the asking price of local properties. 

 Ask the assessor to explain the criteria used for 
classifying your property. You may also review the 
classification of other property used in the same 
manner as yours. 

 
Gathering supporting evidence 
You must have documentation to support your 
appeal. Items you may wish to bring to the  
meeting include:  

 A recent appraisal of your property. 
 Recent sales of similar property. 
 Documentation supporting the use of  
your property (if you are appealing the 
classification). 

 Copies of other property owners’ field cards/property 
information. 

 Photos of your property. 
 Photos or exhibits comparing neighboring properties 
to yours. 

 
If you should have questions, please don’t hesitate to 
contact your assessor’s office. Staff members are always 
willing to answer questions and give you information that 
will help you understand your assessment. 
 

See page 2 for helpful hints →



 
 
 
 
 

 
Revised 07/04 Minnesota Revenue, Preparing an Appeal to your Local and County Boards of Appeal and Equalization 2

Presenting your case 
Remember, how you present your case may affect the 
outcome of your appeal – you want to be sure you get 
your point across as effectively as possible. 

 Make a list of key points you may wish to present. 
 The board has never seen your  
property. Describe your property so  
they will understand your arguments  
more fully. Photos can be helpful to  
support your argument. 

 Keep your presentation brief and factual. 
 Be prepared to discuss your case with the board or 
answer any questions that the board may have. 

 
Written appeals 
You may also appeal your value or classification by 
submitting a letter of appeal to the board instead of 
appearing in person. 
 
You will want to do your research and  
explain your appeal in writing. Your letter  
should state the facts and include supporting 
documentation. You may want to include your daytime 
phone number so you can be reached in case the board 
has any questions. 
 

Other helpful information 
Please keep in mind that taxes are not the issue. To 
strengthen your appeal, you should present evidence 
about your property’s value or classification,  
not how much you are paying in taxes. 
  
This fact sheet is not meant to give you  
legal advice. It is intended to be a helpful tool with 
general information for presenting your property tax 
appeal at your Local and County Boards of Appeal and 
Equalization. 
 



Flow Chart of the Appeal Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

What do I do if I think my property is valued or classified incorrectly? 

After you receive your value notice (mailed February – April) 

Examine your notice; if you have a question OR if you think your property assessment for 
this year is incorrect, follow these steps: 

Step 1 Talk to your assessor 

 Call the number listed on the notice 

 Discuss your concerns with the assessor/appraiser 

 Review sales information

Step 2 
Attend the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization or Open Book Meeting** 

 The local board of appeal and equalization meets at the city level 

 Meets in April or May 

 Appeal in person, by letter or by designated representative 

 Call your assessor – an appointment may be requested 
 

** “Open Book” meeting: If your notice refers to an open book meeting, this is held in lieu of the 
local board of appeal and equalization. It’s an informal review between the property owners 
and the assessor/appraiser to resolve assessment questions prior to the county board of 
appeal and equalization. 

Step 3 Attend County Board of Appeal and Equalization 

 You must first appeal to the local board of appeal and equalization if your city holds 
this meeting. 

 If your city has an open book meeting, you may appeal directly to the county board 
of appeal and equalization. Although it is strongly recommended, you are not 
required to appear at the open book meeting. 

 Meets in June 

 Appeal in person, by letter or by designated representative 

Appeal to the Minnesota Tax Court 

Appeals must be filed by April 30 of the year following the assessment. There are two 
divisions in which you may file an appeal as described below: 

www.taxcourt.state.mn.us 

Regular Division 

Non-homestead property valued over $300,000 
 
Appeal can be used for all property 
 
Attorney is recommended 
 
Decisions can be appealed to MN Supreme Court 

Small Claims Division 

Estimated market value of the property is less than 
$300,000, or 
 
If residential (1a) or disabled (1b) homestead, then 
there must be only one dwelling unit per parcel per 
petition. 
If ag homestead (2a), homestead must apply to 
entire property, or 
 
Denial of current year application for homestead. 
 
Attorney is not necessary; decisions are final. 



Page 1 

 

City of Independence  
 

Consideration of the Cooperative Maintenance Agreement Passed Down from MNDOT and 
Hennepin County for the Roundabout Improvements at the Intersection of TH 12 and CSAH 90 

 
To: City Council 

 
From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

 
Meeting Date: March 16, 2021 

 

 
 
UPDATE: 
 
Staff met with MNDOT and Hennepin County to review concerns expressed by the City Council.  Staff 
asked for the following changes and revisions to the contract: 
 

• Add language to the contract that is required by the City’s insurance company to allow the light 
poles to be covered under the City’s insurance policy.  In lieu of adding language, MNDOT can turn 
over ownership of the lights to the City. 

 
• Can you find out if MNDOT has ever placed signage at or before the roundabout trails that states, 

“trails not maintained in the winter?”  This may alleviate a large portion of the concerns relating to 
snow plowing.   
  

• Will MNDOT remove the responsibility of the “markings” from the City’s proposed maintenance 
requirements?  MNDOT is going to be monitoring and repainting the road on a schedule and it 
would not make sense for the City to be on a different schedule for striping? 
  

• If the City does not own the lights, we should discuss adding language relating to small cell 
technology.  The City will want provisions in the agreement that specifically prohibits MNDOT from 
adding equipment and potentially maintenance to the light poles.  I am not sure how this has been 
handled in previous agreements, but I cannot imagine that MNDOT would expect the City to agree 
to maintain something that could be impacted by allowing small cell equipment to be added? 
  

• Please consider using a low or no mow grass seed for the boulevards between the trail and 
sidewalks.  The specified seed mix should be noted on the plans. 
  

• During our discussion yesterday it was noted that the trails and crosswalks were for bicyclists 
crossing TH 12 on CSAH 90.  Why do the trails appear to be designed to pick up bicyclists on TH 
12?  It seems that the trail sections could be shortened to correspond to the cross walks. 

 
Staff is waiting for a response from MNDOT relating to the aforementioned questions and or comments?  
Staff will review the information at the City Council Meeting.  MNDOT noted that without resolution to the 



Page 2 

 

contract, the project will be delayed and or canceled.  Staff asked for an official position from MNDOT in 
writing relating to their desire to eliminate this project. 
 
 
Discussion: 
 
The City has been discussing the TH 12/CSAH 90 2021 roundabout reconstruction project with MNDOT for 
several years.  In December of 2020, MNDOT notified the City that they would be preparing a Cooperative 
Agreement that would pass down to the City MNDOT’s responsibility for the future maintenance of several 
key elements of the newly constructed intersection improvement.  MNDOT’s internal policy relating to 
maintenance of key elements (described below) is to pass the responsibility down to the benefitting 
authority.  For this project, the responsibility has been passed down to Hennepin County.  Similar to 
MNDOT’s policy, Hennepin County also has a policy which shifts responsibility down to the local 
municipality for the same items.  There are several significant short and long-term potential impacts to the 
City resulting from this request.  The City is being asked to take over the responsibility for the following 
maintenance items: 
 
1. Maintenance by the City 

Upon completion of the project, the City will provide the following without cost or expense to the State: 
1.1. Sidewalks. Maintenance of any sidewalk construction on the roundabout at T.H. 12 and 

C.S.A.H. 90, including stamped and colored concrete sidewalk (if any) and pedestrian ramps. 
Maintenance includes, but is not limited to, snow, ice, and debris removal, patching, crack repair, panel 
replacement, cross street pedestrian crosswalk markings, vegetation control of boulevards (if any) 
and any other maintenance activities necessary to perpetuate the sidewalks in a safe, useable, and 
aesthetically acceptable condition. 

1.2. Maintenance of lighting at and approaching the roundabout, including all legs and within 
the roundabout as shown in Exhibit “A”, will be shared between the State and the City. The City 
will be responsible for the hook up cost and application to secure an adequate power supply to the 
service pad or pole and will pay all monthly electrical service expenses necessary to operate the 
lighting facility. The City will be responsible for relamping or LED luminaire replacement, repair or 
replacement of all damaged luminaire glassware, loose connections, luminaires when damaged or 
when ballasts fail, photoelectric control on luminaires, defective starter boards or drivers, damaged 
fuse holders, and blown fuses for the entire system. For those poles on the local legs of the 
roundabout shown in Exhibit "A", the City will be responsible for knocked down poles including 
wiring within the poles, damaged poles, pullboxes, underground wire, and damaged foundations 
for all of the maintenance. The State will be responsible for the remainder of the lighting 
maintenance within the main roundabout and at the trunk highway legs of the roundabout. 

1.3. Additional Drainage. No party to this Agreement will drain any additional drainage volume into 
the storm sewer facilities constructed under the construction contract that was not included in the 
drainage for which the storm sewer facilities were designed, without first obtaining written permission 
to do so from the other party. The drainage areas served by the storm sewer facilities constructed 
under the construction contract are shown in a drainage area map, Exhibit "Drainage Area", which is 



Page 3 

 

on file in the office of the State's District Hydraulics Unit at Roseville and is incorporated into this 
Agreement by reference. 

1.4. Related Agreements. This Agreement will supersede and terminate the operation and 
maintenance terms of Lighting Maintenance Agreement No. 1000750 dated August 18, 2015, between 
the State and City, for the existing lighting system on T.H. 12 at C.S.A.H. 90. 

In addition to the aforementioned items, the initial agreement also required the City to be financially 
responsible for the maintenance of the newly created stormwater ponds.  The City discussed this point of 
the agreement further with MNDOT and they ultimately agreed to remove the pond maintenance 
responsibility from the agreement.   
 

 

 
 
 
Council Recommendation: 
 
Staff is seeking further direction and consideration relating to the proposed cooperative agreement with 
MNDOT.  The City has noted in our discussions that the improvements do not include any City roads or 
right of way.  The City is being asked to take some responsibility for the defined items related to the 
reconstructed intersection of a state highway and county highway.  This agreement also raises questions 
relating to the TH 12/CSAH 92 reconstruction project that is currently in the process of being designed.  The 



Page 4 

 

City was informed that a similar agreement will be requested for improvements relating to that project.  The 
costs associated with the cooperative agreement are not budgeted at this time and may be difficult to 
accommodate depending on the extent of the responsibilities.  City Council is asked to consider whether or 
not to approve entering into a Cooperative Agreement with MNDOT. 
 
 
 
Attachments: Cooperative Agreement with Exhibit A 
 Roundabout Plans 
  



LEGEND

PERMANENT GROUND ROD (25 OHMS OR LESS)

3" PVC (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) 

LIGHTING UNIT 

T

XX

XX
LIGHTING UNIT IDENTIFIER

DIRECT BURIED LIGHTING CABLE 4/C 4 AWG

FD. PT. CABINET 

NO. STATION LT. RT. LOCATION TYPE

1 X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

FOUNDATION

LIGHTING UNIT LOCATION AND TYPE

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

9-40 E

EB TH12

X

X

X

X 9-40 E

FEEDPOINT P09H

13

14

15

16

EB TH12

EB TH12

EB TH12

EB TH12

16+50

18+90

21+30

23+58

24+95 EB TH12

11+55

13+61

5+38

14+00

11+55

WB TH12

WB TH12

9+08 WB TH12

6+64 WB TH12

5+26 WB TH12

8+95

6+72

5+91

19863

D
IS

T
R
IC

T
 
#
:

IP
L

O
T
 

N
A

M
E
:

P
A

T
H
 

&
 

F
IL

E
N

A
M

E
:

P
r
o
j
e
c
ts
\D

M
_

R
O
S
\0

12
\2

7
13
\1
2
2
\T

r
a
f
f
ic
\L
ig

h
ti
n
g
\t

2
7
13
-1
2
2
_
li
t_
lo
.d

g
n

t2
7
13
-1
2
2
_
li
t_
lo

M
e
tr

o

16
-O

C
T
-2

0
2
0

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
/

R
E

V
IS

E
D
:

   

BY DATE REVISIONS

                                                     

           

DRAWN BY:PB 
SHEET NO. SL4 OF SL5 SHEETSSTATE PROJ.NO. 2713-122 (T.H. 12) 

CKD BY:JDC 

    LIGHTING PLAN     

CERTIFIED BY DATE:     LIC. NO.      

LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

        16-OCT-2020

METER ADDRESS:  PENDING

FEEDPOINT: P09H      LOCATION: CSAH 90

MATCHLINE

    200

SCALE IN FEET

CR 90

CR 90

CR 90

CR 90

CR 90

POLE MOUNTED TRANSFORMER (PENDING)

S.A.P. 027-690-002

POLE MOUNTED TRANSFORMER.

2" R.S.C. 3- 1/C #2 AWG TO XCEL 

EQUIPMENT PAD TYPE B REQUIRED

120/240V (METERED)

SECONDARY TYPE L1

PAD MOUNTED SERVICE CABINET

FD. PT. P09H

SPECIFIC NOTES:

1 DIRECTIONAL BORED

1

1

R
W

B

B AND R DENOTE CURRENT CARRYING CONDUCTORS

W DENOTES NEUTRAL CONDUCTOR

R
W

B

120/240 VOLT

H

H

A

H

H

H

H

7

5

4

A

16

13

12

11

8

C
R
9
0

H

10

FD. PT. P09H

H H H

H

H H H H

H

9

HH

6

1
0

?

?

H

3

A

15

2
5

5

10

15

10

15

25

0

{ 12WBAPP

{ 12EBDEP

{ CIRCLE

{ CR90SBDEP

{ CR90NBAPP

5

1
0

1
5

CR90NBAPP STATION 11+98.21
BEGIN CONSTRUCTION (CO RD 90)

TH12 EB

TH12 WB

{ CR90SBAPP

1516

H H

3

H

1 42

H H

56

H

13

14

T
H
1
2
 
E
B

T
H
1
2
 

W
B

12 11 10 9

C
R
 
9
0

BREAKERS

4 - 2 POLE

H H

78

Babi1Pau
Pencil

Indi1Jac
Text Box
Exhibit "A" - Lighting MaintenanceAgreement 1045159 Sheet 1 of 2

Indi1Jac
Pencil

Indi1Jac
Pencil

Indi1Jac
Text Box
       Minor Maintenance              Minor and Major Maintenance

Indi1Jac
Pencil

Indi1Jac
Pencil



LEGEND

PERMANENT GROUND ROD (25 OHMS OR LESS)

3" PVC (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) 

LIGHTING UNIT 

XX

XX
LIGHTING UNIT IDENTIFIER

DIRECT BURIED LIGHTING CABLE 4/C 4 AWG

19863

D
IS

T
R
IC

T
 
#
:

IP
L

O
T
 

N
A

M
E
:

P
A

T
H
 

&
 

F
IL

E
N

A
M

E
:

P
r
o
j
e
c
ts
\D

M
_

R
O
S
\0

12
\2

7
13
\1
2
2
\T

r
a
f
f
ic
\L
ig

h
ti
n
g
\t

2
7
13
-1
2
2
_
li
t_
lo
.d

g
n

t2
7
13
-1
2
2
_
li
t_
lo

M
e
tr

o

16
-O

C
T
-2

0
2
0

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
/

R
E

V
IS

E
D
:

   

BY DATE REVISIONS

                                                     

           

DRAWN BY: PB
SHEET NO. SL5 OF SL5 SHEETSSTATE PROJ.NO. 2713-122 (T.H. 12) 

CKD BY: JDC

    LIGHTING PLAN     

CERTIFIED BY DATE:     LIC. NO.      

LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

        16-OCT-2020

METER ADDRESS:  PENDING

FEEDPOINT: P09H      LOCATION: CSAH 90

MATCHLINE

    200

SCALE IN FEET

S.A.P. 027-690-002

A

H

2

14

C
R
9
0

H

1

RAILROAD AVE.

2
0

2
0

{ 12EBAPP  

CR90NBDEP STATION 11+36.15
END CONSTRUCTION (CO RD 90)

1
0

{ 12WBDEP

{ CR90NBDEP

T
H
1
2
 

W
B

T
H
1
2
 
E

B

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE

HENNEPIN CO.

Babi1Pau
Pencil

Indi1Jac
Text Box
Exhibit "A" - Lighting MaintenanceAgreement 1045159 Sheet 2 of 2

Indi1Jac
Pencil

Indi1Jac
Pencil

Indi1Jac
Text Box
       Minor Maintenance              Minor and Major Maintenance

Indi1Jac
Pencil

Indi1Jac
Pencil

Indi1Jac
Text Box



30'R

25'R

20'R

10'R

15'R20'R

10'R

49'R

69'R

D
IS

T
R
IC

T
 
#
:

IP
L

O
T
 

N
A

M
E
:

P
r
o
j
e
c
ts
\D

M
_

R
O
S
\0

12
\2

7
13
\1
2
2
\D

e
s
ig

n
\P
la

n
S
h
e
e
ts
\d

2
7
13

12
2
_
c
p
s
h
t2
.d

g
n

d
2
7
13

12
2
_
c
p
s
h
t2

M
e
tr

o

1-
S

E
P
-2

0
2
0

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
/

R
E

V
IS

E
D
:

CERTIFIED BY               
LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER   

                                            

F
IL

E
N

A
M

E
:

 CHECKED BY: BRH                 

CONSTRUCTION PLAN

SHEET 2 OF 3

DRAWN BY: JKD          43348 8/31/2020LIC. NO.        DATE 36 81SP 2713-122 (T.H. 12)SAP 027-690-002 SHEET NO.       OF     SHEETS
+
9
7

       

Type 3

Wetland #1

Type 2

COE Wetland

Ditch #5.1

Type 2

COE Wetland

Ditch #5.3

Type 3

COE Wetland

Ditch #5.4

Type 3

COE Wetland

Ditch #5.2

Type 3

COE Wetland

Ditch #6.2

Type 3

COE Wetland

Ditch #8.1

Type 3

WCA & COE Wetland

Ditch #6.1

Type 2

COE Wetland

Ditch #4

1
2
'
 
T

H
R

U
 
L

A
N
E

1
2
'
 
T

H
R

U
 
L

A
N
E

1
2
'
 
T

H
R

U
 
L

A
N
E

1
2
'
 
T

H
R

U
 
L

A
N
E

1
2
'
 

T
H

R
U
 

L
A

N
E

1
2
'
 

T
H

R
U
 

L
A

N
E

1
2
'
 

T
H

R
U
 

L
A

N
E

1
2
'
 

T
H

R
U
 

L
A

N
E

12' THRU LANE

12' THRU LANE

1
2
'
 

T
H

R
U
 

L
A

N
E

T
H

R
U
/

R
T

L

1
2
'

T
H

R
U
/

R
T

L
8
'
 

S
H

L
D

8
'
 

S
H

L
D

0
'
 
T

O
 
6
'
 
S

H
L

D

1
2
'
 
L
T
L

1
2
'
 

R
T
L

0
'
 
T

O
 
6
'
 
S

H
L

D

T
.
E
.

T
.
E
.

T
.
E
.

T
.
E
.

T
.
E
.

T
.

E
.

T
.

E
.

T
.
E
.

T.E.

T.E.

R
/

W

R
/

W

R
/

W
R
/

W

R/W

R
/

W
R/W

R/W

R/W

2
0

2
5

5

10

10

2
0

25

0

1
0

40

2
0

3
0

{ 12WBAPP

{ 12EBDEP

{ CIRCLE

{ CR90SBDEP

{ CR90NBAPP

{ 12EBAPP  

5

1
0

1
5

{
 

S
E

W
A

L
K

{ 12WBDEP

Type 3

COE Wetland

Ditch #8.1

Type 3

COE Wetland

Ditch #7

{ CR90NBDEP

{ SWWALK

{ 
NEWALK

12' THRU/RTL

R
/

W
 
I

N
P

R
/

W
 
I

N
P

R
/

W
 
I

N
P

R
/

W
 
I

N
P

R
/

W
 
I

N
P

R
/

W
 
I

N
P

R/W INP

R/W INP

RR RW

RR RW

BNSF RAILWAY

CR90NBDEP STATION 11+36.15
END CONSTRUCTION (CO RD 90)

CR90NBAPP STATION 11+98.21
BEGIN CONSTRUCTION (CO RD 90)

C
R
 

9
0
 

N
B

T
H
1
2
 

W
B

T
H
1
2
 
E

B

C
R
 
9
0
 

S
B

C
R
 
9
0
 

N
B

TH12 WB

TH12 EB

Type 3

WCA & COE Wetland

Ditch #4.5W

1
2
'
 
T

H
R

U
/

R
T
L

1
2
'
 
T

H
R

U

12' THRU LANE

?

U
M

HU
M

H

U
M

H

U
M

H
U

M
H

U
M

H

U
M

H

?

?

?

?

?

? ?

?

?

?

?

 

septic area

existing

Approximate

LIMITS

CONSTRUCTION

LIMITS

CONSTRUCTION

LIMITS

CONSTRUCTION

LIMITS

CONSTRUCTION

R424 C&G

S
5
2
4
 
C

&
G

S
5
2
4
 
C

&
G

S524 C&G

S
5
2
4
 

C
&

G

B
4
2
4
 
C

&
G

B
4
2
4
 
C

&
G

B424 C&G

+
2
0

+
0
1

+
6

1

+
0

3
+
4
5

+
8
0

+53

+07

R 20'

B
4
2
4
 
C

&
G

S524 C&G

S524 C&G

S
5
2
4
 

C
&

G

SCALE IN FEET

100

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE

HENNEPIN CO.

LEGEND

SENSITIVITY

AREAS OF ENVIRONMENTAL

SEE INTERSECTION DETAILS ON SHEET NO   -    .

FOR ADA, RADIUS, AND GUTTER PROFILE POINTS

GENERAL NOTES:

SODDING TYPE SALT TOLERANT

TRAFFIC FLOW ARROW

4" CONCRETE WALK

TRAFFIC BARRIER DESIGN TYPE 31

B
4
2
4
 

C
&

G

47

1
:
5

+
2
3

+
6
3

+
9
6

1
:
1
5

1
:
2
5

+
3
6

1
:
8

+
3
2

+83

1
:
8

1
:
8

+
5
9

+
1
0 +
9
0

+
4

3

1:5

1:5

+36

+16
+21

+01

1:8

1
:
8

1:5

+98

+08

+98

1:15

+50

+32

42

+43

R 20'

1

1

1
1

1

1

1

1

R 22'

{
 

C
R
9
0

S
B

A
P

P

{
 

N
W

W
A

L
K

C&G

S524

6" CONCRETE WALK

TABULATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL PAY ITEMS

TRAFFIC BARRIER WORK SITE SEE
SITE X

S
I
T
E
 
1

   STANDARD PLATE 7113.

1  CONSTRUCT CONCRETE APPROACH NOSE.

RETAINING WALL

CONCRETE PAVEMENT 8"

1
:
8

1:8

+54

SEE DETAIL ON SHEET XX.
CONCRETE DRAINAGE FLUME

B424 C&G

TREATMENT
END

TYPE SP 9.5 WEARING COURSE (3,C)

BITUMINOUS TRAIL

MOD

B624 C&G

POND (THEO)
PROPOSED DRY

FILTRATION BASIN (WALDEN)
PROPOSED WET POND AND



Page 1 

 

City of Independence  
 

Community Clean-up Day Discussion 
 

To: City Council 
 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

Meeting Date: March 16, 2021 
 

 
 
Discussion: 
 
The City has been discussing a 2021 community clean-up day. Staff has several ideas that it would like to 
further discuss with and obtain feedback relating to clean-up day from City Council.  The clean-up day was 
not held in 2020 due to the pandemic.  Staff offers the following discussion points: 
 

• The City has collected fees associated with the materials brought in by residents.  The City has 
also partnered with Maple Plain and ultimately split costs associated with the event 50/50.  The City 
has spent the following amounts on the community clean-up day over the last 4 years: 

 
YEAR TOTAL RECEIPTS TOTAL EXPENSES DIFFERENCE AFTER SPLIT WITH M.P.      

  
2019   $4,733.00                       $5,163.26                   ($430.26)          ($215.13) 
2018    $5,693.50                          $5,560.18                       $133.32              $66.66 
2017    $5,533.20                    $7,803.23                     ($2,270.03)      ($1,135.01) 
2016    $4,313.50                         $5,195.32                      ($881.82)           ($440.91) 

 
• Staff has been looking for ways to increase participation and access and to reduce contact points 

this year to the extent possible.  Staff discussed the idea of working directly with Randy’s to have 
residents go directly to their site to drop off rather than at City Hall.  Randy’s was not confident that 
they could handle a concentrated stream of residents coming all in one day at one general time.   
 

• Staff discussed the possibility of having a drop-off area (fenced area that would be clearly marked 
for each type of item) at City Hall that would be available to residents over a 1-2 week period 
including Saturdays.  This would allow residents more flexibility in the drop-off times and would 
eliminate a concentration of vehicles coming at one time.  This would require residents to unload 
their own vehicles.  Staff also discussed whether or not this could be a twice annual event (spring 
and fall) to try to capture more materials? 
 

• Staff discussed making the event free for this year in order to offset not having a day last year and 
to remove the need for all of the contact/touch points that may limit the number of residents using 
the service. 

 



Page 2 

 

• Staff discussed whether or not it makes sense to continue partnering on the event? 
 

• Materials accepted would be: 
 

o Construction Materials (not concrete) 
o Mattresses 
o Furniture 
o Tires 
o Light Bulbs 
o Batteries 
o Electronics 
o Propane Tanks 
o Recycling Items (cardboard, aluminum, glass) 
o Appliances 
o Bicycles 
o Light Bulbs (including fluorescents) 

 
• Materials not accepted would be: 

 
o Hazardous Materials 
o Concrete 
o Brush/Organics 

 
Council Recommendation: 
 
Staff is seeking further direction and consideration relating to the community clean-up day. 
 
 
  


	sales book-2021.pdf
	Independence write up for sales Book
	Independence_03_01_2021
	Independence_03_01_2021.pdf
	PDFInserts.pdf
	6-HowTheAssessorEstimatesYourValue.pdf
	4-HowToAppealYourValue&Classifcation.pdf
	Preparing an Appeal Fact Sheet 10.pdf
	5-flow-chart-appeal-process-final.pdf



	1045159_AGR_HENNEPIN.pdf
	1. Term of Agreement; Survival of Terms; Plans; Incorporation of Exhibits
	1.1. Effective Date.
	1.2. Expiration Date.
	1.3. Survival of Terms.
	1.4. Plans, Specifications, and Special Provisions.
	1.5. Exhibits.

	2. Construction by the State
	2.1. Contract Award.
	2.2. Direction, Supervision, and Inspection of Construction.
	A. Supervision and Inspection by the State.
	B. Inspection by the County.

	2.3. Plan Changes, Additional Construction, Etc.
	A. The State will make changes in the Project Plans and contract construction, which may include the County participation construction covered under this Agreement, and will enter into any necessary addenda and change orders with the State's contracto...
	B. The County may request additional work or changes to the work in the plans as part of the construction contract. Such request will be made by an exchange of letter(s) with the State. If the State determines that the requested additional work or pla...

	2.4. Satisfactory Completion of Contract.
	2.5. Permits. The City will submit to the State's Utility Engineer an original permit application for all utilities owned by the City to be constructed hereunder that are upon and within the Trunk Highway Right-of-Way. Applications for permits will be...
	2.6. Replacement of Castings.

	3. Maintenance by the City
	3.1. Sidewalks.
	3.2. Lighting.
	3.3. Additional Drainage.
	3.4. Related Agreements.

	4. Maintenance by the County
	4.1. Roundabout on T.H. 12 at C.S.A.H. 90.
	A. Roundabout Approaches.
	B. Roundabout Circle.

	4.2. Storm Sewers.
	4.3. Additional Drainage.

	5. Basis of County Cost
	5.1. Schedule "I".
	5.2. County Participation Construction.
	A. 100 Percent will be the County's rate of cost participation in all of the construction items tabulated on Sheets No. 2 through 4 of the Preliminary Schedule "I".
	B. 30 Percent will be the County's rate of cost participation in all of the lighting system construction, based off of the amount of lights on C.S.A.H. 90 compared to T.H. 12. The construction is included in the County's 100 Percent cost participation...

	5.3. Construction Engineering Costs.
	5.4. Plan Changes, Additional Construction, Etc.
	5.5. Liquidated Damages.

	6. County Cost and Payment by the County
	6.1. County Cost.
	6.2. Conditions of Payment.
	A. Execution of this Agreement and transmittal to the County, including a copy of the Revised Schedule "I".
	B. The County's receipt of a written request from the State for the advancement of funds.

	6.3. Acceptance of the County's Cost and Completed Construction.
	6.4. Final Payment by the County.

	7. Authorized Representatives
	7.1. The State's Authorized Representative will be:
	7.2. The County's Authorized Representative will be:
	7.3. The City's Authorized Representative will be:

	8. Assignment; Amendments; Waiver; Contract Complete
	8.1. Assignment.
	8.2. Amendments.
	8.3. Waiver.
	8.4. Contract Complete.

	9. Liability; Worker Compensation Claims
	9.1. Each party is responsible for its own acts, omissions, and the results thereof to the extent authorized by law and will not be responsible for the acts, omissions of others, and the results thereof. Minnesota Statutes § 3.736 and other applicable...
	9.2. Each party is responsible for its own employees for any claims arising under the Workers Compensation Act.

	10. Nondiscrimination
	11. Title VI/Non-discrimination Assurances
	The City and the County agree to comply with all applicable US DOT Standard Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances contained in DOT Order No. 1050.2A, and in particular Appendices A and E, which can be found at: https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/ed...
	12. State Audits
	13. Government Data Practices
	14. Telecommunications Certification.
	15. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue
	16. Termination; Suspension
	16.1. By Mutual Agreement.
	16.2. Termination for Insufficient Funding.
	16.3. Suspension.

	17. Force Majeure
	1045159_P_HENNEPIN.pdf
	COST
	city.pays





